
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
October 1, 2009, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the September 3, 2009 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 


C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 
regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting. 


 
D. Adopt Resolution 09-24, Approving a First Amendment to Employment 


Agreement with Stephen F. Mack and Authorizing the Board President to 
Execute Said First Amendment 


 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 


the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 and FY 2010-11 


funding from the Russian River Redevelopment Oversight Committee/Sonoma 
County Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 09-23, Approving the Second 


Amendment to Services Agreement Between Sweetwater Springs Water District 
and Dale Dross (Est. time 20 min.) 


 
C. Discussion/Action re District reserve policy (Est. time 30 min.) 
 
D. Discussion re Russian River water shortage (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Potential disposition of District property (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
F. Discussion re Communication towers and potential fire (WS) (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
G. Discussion re Card or letter from the District to Chuck Howell’s family (Est. time 


10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (Est. time: 15 min.) 
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(Est. time: 5 min.) 
 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION (Est. time: 40 min.) 


 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of 


Section 54956.9.   
  Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
 


 2







 3


 
IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
Regular Meeting  
September 3, 2009 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Victoria Wikle 
 Wanda Smith 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: Jim Quigley 
 Gaylord Schaap (arr. 6:57 p.m.) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Mike Gogna, District counsel 
      Lloyd Guccione 


 
I. CALL TO ORDER 


 
The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Victoria Wikle at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 


p.m.) 
 
 
Director Wikle requested that Item V-C, re Approval of Resolution 09-22, be amended to read “. . . 
request up to 75% funding . . . “ rather than “ . . . request 75% funding . . . “.  There were no 
objections. 
 
Director Wikle requested that Item Closed Session Item VIII-B, re Conference with Labor 
Negotiator, reference Mike Gogna as District Negotiator.  (This change had already been made.) 
 
Director Smith requested adding an item regarding the fire tower.  Her request was denied. 
 
Director Wikle requested that Closed Session be started no later than 9:30 p.m.  Upon discussion, 
the Board agreed to start Closed Session no later than 9 p.m.  
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.) 
 
Director Smith moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  
Motion carried 3-0.  The following items were approved: 


 1







 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 6, 2009 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments/Construction 


Warrants, and West America account activity 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  (There was no correspondence.) 
 
D. Authorize GM to submit ballot for election of CSDA Board of Directors 


representative 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.) 


A. (6:37 p.m.) Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 09-21, 
Overruling Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charges for the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Director Wikle opened the Public Hearing at 6:37 
p.m.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Director Wikle closed the Public 
Hearing at 6:38 p.m.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to adopt Resolution 09-21, Overruling 
Protests and Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charges for the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  


B. (6:38 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Adoption by reading of title only of Ordinance 40, 
Adding Policy Numbers 3020.142 through 3020.148 to the District’s Policies & 
Procedures, Capacity Charge.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Public 
comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Director Smith moved to adopt by reading of 
title only Ordinance 40, Adding Policy Numbers 3020.142 through 3020.148 to the 
District’s Policy and Procedures, Capacity Charge.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  
Motion carried 3-0.  


C. (6:48 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Status report on application for FY 2009-10 
funding from the Russian River Oversight Committee/Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency for CIP IV-B; and 


 Approval of Resolution 09-22, Amending the 2010-2015 Capital Improvement 
Program to include the Bonita Terrace Project ($238,000) with FY 2009-10 projects 
and Amending the Request for Grant Funding from the Sonoma County 
Redevelopment Agency and the RRROC for FY 2009-10 and 2010-11 to include the 
Bonita Terrace Project and to request up to 75% funding.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd 
Guccione.  Further discussion ensued.  The Board Clerk read the following amendments 
to Resolution 09-22 into the record: 


On page 3 of the Resolution, amend the second to last line of item 2. to 
read “. . . funding would total $1,994,250….” and amend the remaining 
portion of item 2. in such a way as to reflect that the District would 
contribute the remaining funds necessary to complete the project. 


 Director Robb-Wilder moved to approve amended Resolution 09-22, Requesting Grant 
Funding from Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency and the Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee for Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2010-2011, 
Revising Resolution 09-15 to Include Main Replacement Work on Bonita Terrace and 
Revising Resolution 09-04, which Approved the 2010-2015 CIP, to Include Said Work on 
Bonita Terrace.  Director Smith seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. 


 2







D. (7:28 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 09-23, Approving the 
Second Amendment to Services Agreement Between Sweetwater Springs Water 
District and Dale Dross.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion 
ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd Guccione.  Further Board discussion 
ensued.  No action was taken, but general direction was given to staff to gather additional 
information.  This item was continued to the October Board meeting.  


E. (7:46 p.m.) Discussion/Action re District reserve policy.  The GM made a PowerPoint 
presentation on this item.  Board questions ensued.  Public comment was made by Lloyd 
Guccione.  Board discussion ensued.  Director was given to staff to develop tables 
showing options for varying levels of reserves.  This item was continued to the October 
Board meeting.   


F. (8:20 p.m.) Discussion re Russian River water shortage.  The GM made a 
PowerPoint presentation.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.  


G. (8:34 p.m.) Discuss/Action re Potential disposition of District property.  The GM 
provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Public comment was made 
by Lloyd Guccione.  This item was continued for further discussion at the October Board 
meeting. 


*** At 8:49 p.m. a break was announced.  The meeting reconvened at 8:57 p.m. *** 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:03 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided an overview of the following subjects: 
 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water production and sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Capital improvement projects 
5. Rainfall 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(9:03 p.m.) 


 
Director Wikle announced a “Sunday in New Orleans” event 
Director Wikle announced a Russian Riverfest would be held at Burke’s Canoe’s 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:04 p.m.) 
 
At 9:04 p.m. President Wikle announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 9:06 p.m. 
the Board went into Closed Session. At 10:15 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the following 
action on the Closed Session item was announced: 
 


A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Personnel Exception: Performance 
Evaluation: General Manager. 


 No action was taken. 
 


 3







 4


B. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to subdivision (f) of Section 
54957.6 of the Government Code. 


 District Negotiator: Board of Directors (Mike Gogna, District counsel) 
 Unrepresented employees: Steve Mack, General Manager 


  Direction was given to legal counsel. 
   


C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) 
of Section 54956.9 


 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, 
et al.  


  No action was taken. 
 
 D. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7. 
  Property: 14139 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Steve Mack 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and SBA Wireless Towers 
  No action was taken. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (10:16 p.m.) 
 
1. RRROC/Sonoma County Redevelopment application 
2. Meter reader contract 
3. District Reserve policy 
4. District property  
6. Communication towers and fire (WS) 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 10:17 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Wanda Smith:  ______________ _ ______  
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Jim Quigley:  ______________ _ ______  





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:37 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (9:03 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(9:03 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (9:04 p.m.)

		A. Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957 – Personnel Exception: Performance Evaluation: General Manager.

		 No action was taken.

		B. Conference with Labor Negotiator pursuant to subdivision (f) of Section 54957.6 of the Government Code.

		 District Negotiator: Board of Directors (Mike Gogna, District counsel)

		 Unrepresented employees: Steve Mack, General Manager

		C. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation, pursuant to subd. (a) of Section 54956.9

		 Name of case: Cross-Complaint of F. Korbel & Bros. v. John Bruce Berry, et al. 





		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (10:16 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






 
BOARD ACTION: Date:        Approved:        Denied:    
 
UNANIMOUS ___  QUIGLEY ___  WIKLE ___  SCHAAP ___  KEACH ___  SMITH ___ 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. III-D 
FROM: Michael Gogna, District Counsel  
 


Meeting 
Date: October 1, 2009 Subject: Approving Amendment to General 
   Manager's Employment Agreement  
   


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


 
Adopt Resolution 09-24, approving a First Amendment to the At-Will Employment Agreement with  
Stephen F. Mack and Authorizing the Board President to Execute Said Amendment 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


 
 A COLA for the General Manager was already incorporated into the FY 2009-10 Budget, so the only 


fiscal impact on wages is up to $4,951.92 in vacation accrual payout. 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 


Steve Mack was hired as General Manager of the District as of September 2, 2008.  The terms and 
conditions of employment are described in an At-Will Employment Agreement (“Original Agreement”), 
dated September 2, 2008.  On August 6, 2009, the Board conducted an evaluation of the General 
Manager's performance and found said performance to be satisfactory.  Based, in part, on the Board's 
assessment of the General Manager's performance and his contributions to the District during the past 
year, the Board has agreed to amend the Original Agreement as follows:  
 
1. A 3% cost-of-living increase in compensation 
2. Sick leave accrual shall be one day for each month of work up to a maximum of twelve (12) 


days per calendar year.   
3. Payment of vacation leave (accrued as of August 31, 2009) up to a maximum of two weeks. 
4. Accept limited employment opportunities as an outside consultant subject to the prior approval of 
 the Board of Directors  
 
The First Amendment to the Original Agreement incorporates these provisions.  With these 
modifications, the Original Agreement remains in full force and affect. 







Resolution No. 09-24 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER  
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT WITH STEPHEN F. MACK, 


AND AUTHORIZING THE BOARD PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE SAID FIRST AMENDMENT  
 


WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District ("District") entered into an At-Will 
Employment Agreement on or about September 2, 2008 ("Original Agreement") with Stephen F. 
Mack ("Mack") to serve as General Manager of the District; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District recently evaluated Mack's performance 
as General Manager and has determined that Mack's performance has been satisfactory and he 
has made significant contributions to the District while serving as General Manager; and 


 
WHEREAS, Mack has requested an amendment to the Original Agreement in 


recognition of his contributions to the District and to permit him to accept limited employment 
opportunities as an outside consultant, all as described in the terms of the First Amendment to 
At-Will Employment Agreement ("First Amendment") attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to amend the Original Agreement in the 


manner described herein and as further described in the First Amendment; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater Springs 
Water District, Sonoma County, California, that: 
 


1. The Original Agreement is hereby amended to permit Mack to accept limited 
employment opportunities as an outside consultant subject to the prior approval of the Board of 
Directors and pursuant to the terms set forth in the First Amendment. 


 
2. Mack's compensation shall be increased by 3% to reflect a cost-of-living 


adjustment, to be effective as of September 3, 2009. 
 
3. Certain adjustments to Mack's sick leave and vacation accrual are hereby 


modified as described in the First Amendment. 
 
4. All other terms of the Original Agreement remain in effect, except as otherwise 


set forth in the First Amendment.  
 


5. The Board President is hereby authorized and directed to execute the First 
Amendment on behalf of the District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted and passed by the 
Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, 
California, at a meeting held on October 1, 2009, by the following vote: 







 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Victoria Wikle        
Sukie Robb-Wilder       
Jim Quigley        
Gaylord Schaap       
Wanda Smith        


 
 
            
      Julie A. Kenny 
      Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 
APPROVED: 
 
Victoria Wikle         
Sukie Robb-Wilder        
Jim Quigley         
Gaylord Schaap        
Wanda Smith   ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Exhibit A to Resolution 09-24 
 


FIRST AMENDMENT TO AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
 Stephen F. Mack 


 
This First Amendment to At-Will Employment Agreement (“this Amendment) 


is made between the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ("District") and 


Stephen F. Mack ("Employee") and is dated for convenience the 3rd day of September, 


2009. 


Recitals 


A. District and Employee entered into an At-Will Employment Agreement 


dated September 2, 2008 (“Original Agreement”), whereby Employee agreed to serve 


the District in the position of General Manager. 


B. On August 6, 2009, the District Board of Directors (the "Board") conducted 


an evaluation of Employee's performance and found said performance to be 


satisfactory.    


C. Based, in part, on the Board's assessment of Employee's performance 


and contributions to the District, the parties hereto ("Parties") wish to amend the Original 


Agreement.   


Based on the foregoing Recitals and other considerations, the Parties agree to 


amend the Original Agreement as follows: 
1. TERM 
The duties and obligations of Employee as set forth in the Original Agreement 


shall continue to be in effect except as modified by this Amendment.  Notwithstanding 


the foregoing, and to the extent that other employment does not interfere with 


Employee's performance of such duties and obligations, Employee may, with the prior 


consent of the Board, accept other limited employment opportunities as a "consultant" 


as long as such other employment opportunities do not require the Employee to be 


absent from the District office for more than three (3) consecutive days nor more than 


five (5) days in any one month and provided that such other employment does not result 


in a conflict of interest for Employee or the District.   


 







2 


2. COMPENSATION 


Employee's compensation as set forth in the Original Agreement shall be 


increased by 3% as a cost-of-living adjustment, said increase to be effective as of 


September 3, 2009.    


3. SUPPLEMENTAL BENEFITS  
 a.  Sick Leave.  Employee shall accrue sick leave benefits at the rate of 


one day for each month of work up to a maximum of twelve (12) days per calendar year, 


with no accrual limit.  Accrued sick leave remaining at the time of Employee’s 


termination from District employment shall be forfeited and Employee shall not be paid 


for such sick leave. 


  b.  Accrued vacation.  Prior to December 31, 2009, Employee shall be 


paid for vacation leave that was accrued but unused as of August 31, 2009, up to a 


maximum of two weeks of accrued vacation leave. 


4. NOTICES. 
  Any notice that is required to be given in writing to Employee shall be 


delivered via first class mail with the postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 


   
    Stephen F. Mack  
    16130 Brookside Drive 
    Guerneville, CA  95446 
  
 Except as otherwise modified by this Amendment, the terms and conditions of 


the Original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.     


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be signed 


and executed to be effective as of the date first shown above. 


 


__________________________________ __________________________ 
Stephen F. Mack, Employee   Victoria Wikle, Board President 


 Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
_________________________________ 
Michael Gogna, District General Counsel 





		Item III-D - Amendment of General Manager contract with Stephen Mack (9-15-09)

		Meeting



		Item III-D.1 RES 09-24 - Amendment of General Manager contract with Stephen Mack (9-15-09)

		Item III-D.2 First Amendment to Mack contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: UPDATE ON REQUEST FOR GRANT FUNDING FROM THE 
RUSSIAN RIVER REDEVELOPMENT OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE/SONOMA 
COUNTY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FOR CIP IV-B  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive an update on this funding request.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Approval by the County of this grant request of $1,994,250 will fund 
approximately 75% of CIP IV-B, the Fiscal Year 2010 and 2011 capital projects of the 
District’s 2010-2015 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  This will allow the District to 
maintain reserves above District policy at a level sufficient to continue infrastructure 
improvements beyond the six-year CIP, and allows the District to delay increasing the 
Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) for at least two years. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District request for funding assistance from the Russian River Redevelopment 
Oversight Committee (RRROC)/Sonoma County Redevelopment Agency (RDA) for 
CIP IV-B is moving forward to the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors.   RDA staff 
presented the revised request to the RRROC on September 17 (this was the second 
hearing on this item) and the request was unanimously approved.  RRROC members 
praised the promise to delay increasing the CDRC if the funding request is approved 
by the Board of Supervisors.    
 
This item will be on the Board of Supervisors, acting as the Community Development 
Commission (CDC), agenda on November 3, 2009.  It may be on the consent 
calendar or the CDC administrative agenda. 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AND DALE DROSS FOR METER 
READING SERVICES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approve Resolution 09-23 which approves the Second 
Amendment to Services Agreement between Sweetwater Springs Water District and 
Dale Dross for meter reading services. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The recommended action will increase meter reading costs by approximately 
seven percent in FY 2010 or approximately $2,250 for the year.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the September Board meeting, staff recommended approval of Resolution 9-23 which 
approves an amendment to the services agreement with Dale Dross for meter reading and 
includes a pay increase as described below and changed some language regarding insurance.  At 
the meeting Board members had questions about the auto insurance requirements.   Staff have 
discussed this issue with Mr. Dross and the Special Districts Risk Management Association 
(SDRMA) staff (the District carries insurance with SDRMA).  SDRMA staff stated that with 
insurance more is better and for the type of services that Mr. Dross performs, $500,000 limit is 
appropriate.  Mr. Dross has agreed with that and the contract amendment has been so changed.    
 
Background from September Report:  The District decided to hire an independent contractor 
for meter reading services in 2002 and entered into an agreement with Dale Dross for those 
services.  The agreement states that Mr. Dross shall be paid $1.40 per correctly read meter.  
Since that time the agreement has not been changed with respect to the cost per meter.  The 
District did enter into a contract amendment to extend the term on the contract in March 2008.  
Mr. Dross has approached staff with a request to increase the per meter charge.  After 
discussions with the General Manager, Mr. Dross agreed to a three year contract extension with 
an increase of $.10 in the first year for a cost of $1.50 per meter, a $.05 increase in the second 
year for a per meter cost of $1.55 and an increase of $.05 in the third year for a per meter cost 
of $1.60.   
 
The independent contracting approach to meter reading has been a success and Mr. Dross has 
performed these services in an exemplary manner.  He has learned much about the District in 
the past seven years and provides the District much more than just meter reading – he locates 
many leaks both on the District side of the meter and on the customer side, and he identifies 







Amendment to Services Agreement for Meter Reading Services   2  
October 1, 2009 


other issues out in the field as well and notifies staff.  A per meter cost increase in the 
agreement is appropriate given the increase in costs in the past seven years and Mr. Dross’s 
knowledge of the system.   With the cost increase included in this contract amendment, District 
meter reading is still being done cost effectively.   







 
Resolution No. 09-23 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVING THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO 


THE SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DISTRICT AND DALE 
DROSS FOR METER READING SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE 


GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT   


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), entered into an 
agreement with Dale Dross to serve as an independent contractor meter reader for the 
District in November 2002; and 


 WHEREAS, the District approved an amendment to the contract on March 2008 
extending the term of the agreement to March 2011; and 


 WHEREAS, the financial terms of the original 2002 contract, which are $1.40 for 
each correctly read meter, have not been changed since its inception; and 


 WHEREAS, the District’s General Manager has negotiated changes in the 
contract which extends the contract for three years to 2012, increases the cost per 
meter by $.10 in the first year and $.05 per meter in each of the two ensuing years, and 
makes other clarifying changes to the original agreement; and 


  WHEREAS, the auto liability insurance requirements of the original contract have 
been updated to include a $500,000 limit; and 


 WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to the Agreement is attached as Exhibit A. 


  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE DISTRICT that the Second Amendment to the Agreement with Dale Dross is 
hereby approved and the General Manager is authorized to execute in on behalf of the 
District. 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly 
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on October 1, 
2009, by the following vote. 
 
  







Resolution No. 09-23        2 
October 1, 2009 


 
 
 Wanda Smith:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Jim Quigley:    
 Sukey Robb-Wilder:   
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 
 
 
           
     Victoria Wikle 
     President of the Board 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 
 
 







EXHIBIT A. 
  SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AND DALE DROSS 


 
This Second Amendment (“Amendment”) to a Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is entered into by and 
between SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT (“District”) and Dale Dross (“Contractor”) as of 
October_____, 2009.   
 


WHEREAS, the parties entered into a Services Agreement dated effective November 14, 2002 (the 
“Original Agreement”) for Contractor to provide meter reading and other services; and 


WHEREAS, the parties subsequently amended the Original Agreement, on or about March 6, 2008;  and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties wish to further modify the Original Agreement, as amended;  
 


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 


1. Subsection 1.1 of the original Agreement is now amended to read as follows: 
 


”1.1 Term of Services. The term of this Amendment shall begin on the date first noted above 
(the "Commencement Date") and shall end on the third anniversary of the Commencement Date, 
unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as provided for in Section 8 
of the Original Agreement.  The time provided to Contractor to complete the services required by 
this Agreement shall not affect the District’s right to terminate the original Agreement, as provided 
for therein."  
 


2. Subsections 2.1(1), 2.1(2), and 2.1(3) of the original Agreement are now amended and restated to 
read as follows: 


 
 "2.1  Meter Reading Compensation 


 1.  $1.50 for each meter accurately read, beginning on the Commencement Date and 
continuing for a period of one year following the Commencement Date.   


 2.  $1.55 for each meter accurately read, beginning one year following the Commencement 
Date and continuing for a period of one year thereafter (i.e., until the second anniversary of the 
Commencement Date).   


 3.   $1.60 for each meter accurately read, beginning two years following the Commencement 
Date and continuing for a period of one year thereafter (i.e., until the third anniversary of the 
Commencement Date)." 


 
3. A new subsection 2.8 is hereby added to the Original Agreement to read as follows: 
 


"2.8  Payment Terms and Limitation on Hours Worked. District agrees to pay Contractor for 
services actually performed in accordance with this Amendment, and in accordance with 
subsections 2.2 and 2.3 of the Original Agreement as full and complete compensation.  In no event 
shall the number of hours worked by Contractor to complete the services contemplated hereunder 
exceed 900 in any calendar year."   


 


 







 
SECOND AMENDMENT TO SERVICES AGREEMENT  Page 2 of 2 


4. Section 4 of the Agreement is rescinded in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 


"4.  AUTO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS Contractor, at its own cost and expense, must maintain 
automobile liability insurance for the term of this Agreement in an amount not less than $500,000.  
Such coverage shall include but shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily 
and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property resulting from 
activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of owned and non-owned 
automobiles.  Automobile coverage must be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office 
Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (ed. 12/90) Code 1 (“any auto”). 
 


5.  Subsection 6.1 of the original Agreement is now amended to delete the sentence fragment that 
appears at the end of that subsection and reads as follows: "The Contractor shall work no more". 


 
 


Except as expressly amended herein, the Original Agreement between the District and Contractor dated 
November 14, 2002, is hereby reaffirmed.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment as of the Commencement Date. 
 
 
 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  CONTRACTOR 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
Stephen Mack, General Manager    Dale Dross 
 
 
Attest:  _______________________ 
 Julie Kenny, District Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1281485.2 





		Item V-B - October Dross Contract Amendment

		Item V-B.1 Res 09-23 Dross Second Amendment

		Item V-B.2 Exhibit A Dross Second Amendment

		"2.8  Payment Terms and Limitation on Hours Worked. District agrees to pay Contractor for services actually performed in accordance with this Amendment, and in accordance with subsections 2.2 and 2.3 of the Original Agreement as full and complete compensation.  In no event shall the number of hours worked by Contractor to complete the services contemplated hereunder exceed 900 in any calendar year."  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE DISTRICT RESERVE POLICY  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Consider approval of a District Reserve Policy. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impacts. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the September meeting the Board had its first discussion on adopting a reserve policy.  
This report is a followup of that discussion.  As such, it will not repeat the information 
contained in the September agenda report.  It is intended to be an add on with additional 
information.  Please refer to the September Agenda Report for the earlier discussion on 
the reserve policy. 
 
Confusion between the reserve policy and accounting practices.  Table 1 shows the 
funds the District uses to manage its money and how much is in each fund.  The 
Reserve Policy is not directly related to these accounting practices, but common sense 
suggests the reserve policy can be coordinated with the accounting practices.  For 
example, where the names of a fund and a reserve policy item are the same or similar, it 
would make sense to periodically, perhaps annually, adjust the fund to the reserve policy 
level.   
 
On the other hand, we don’t need a fund for each item of the policy reserve.  For 
example, we are suggesting a 15% Disaster Policy Reserve for the Operating Budget.  
We don’t need a “Disaster Reserve Fund”; we just need to know where that money is 
kept.   
 
We suggest that we settle on a reserve policy and then the accounting practices can be 
coordinated with the policy. 
 
Reserves for loan repayment.    A principal reason for policy reserves is to have funds 
available for unanticipated expenses.  Loan repayments are very steady – there are no 
surprises in annual payments.    While there could be unanticipated decreases in the 







District Reserve Policy  2  
October 1, 2009 


revenues to repay the loans, there will not be increases in the repayment amounts.  The 
policy reserve approach suggested for the Operating Budget includes an economic 
uncertainty element of 10% which is aimed at the revenue side of reserve needs and a 
disaster preparedness element of 15% which is aimed at the expense side.   The above 
discussion of  the need for loan repayment reserves tends toward the economic 
uncertainty need for a loan repayment reserve.     
 
Appropriate size of Reserve Policy amounts.    There is no recommended or standard 
reserve amount.  A review of reserve policies shows a wide range of amounts and 
purposes, some general, some very specific.  It appears that one of the rationales for 
reserve policy amounts is the amount of money on hand when the reserve policy was 
created.  That is, the governing board opted for an achievable reserve target.   
 
The FY 2009 Budget used a 25% policy reserve target.  That was mostly based on my 
experience at other agencies, but was also consistent with what I saw as the District’s 
possible reserve needs.   At the September meeting Board members inquired what a 
50% policy reserve target would look like.   Table 2 shows possible policy reserve 
categories at this higher level.  That shows that a 50% target would use up most of the 
available unbudgeted funds of the District and is only achievable because of the 
$3,000,000 Private Placement Loan, which was acquired for capital improvements.  If we 
set a policy reserve at that level, we should recognize that time will be needed to achieve 
it.     
 
More importantly, the policy reserve target level should be based on possible need.  In 
the event of a large catastrophe that required extensive rebuilding and/or large revenue 
reductions, reserves would needed for immediate response for unanticipated expenses.  
Presumably a disaster would be declared and funding assistance from the State or 
Federal Government would in time come in place for funding the total reconstruction of 
the lost facilities.   In most disaster scenarios reserves would be needed for the 
immediate response, with anticipation of later pay back and mostly complete funding 
assistance. 


 
There is no one correct answer with respect to policy reserve levels other than 
unanimous agreement that all public agencies should have a reserve policy and adhere 
to it.  Staff  believe that a policy reserve in the 25% range for operating budget and 
capital program is appropriate and that some level of reserve is appropriate for loan 
repayments, but not at as high a level because the uncertainty there is only on the 
revenue side.   If used for this budget year, the policy reserve amounts would be those 
shown in the far right column of Table 2.    
 
Please review the September Agenda Report and the information in this report.   Upon 
direction from the Board, staff will return with an ordinance that will formally establish the 
reserve policy. 
 







District Reserve Policy  3  
October 1, 2009 


 
Table 1. District Funds and Reserves   


Fund Name  
Restricted
? Purpose 


Balance @ 
July 1, 2009 


CD at Redwood CU No 4.937% CD maturing in October 2012 $573,223.48 
Operations No Fund that receives operating revenues $800,352.33 


Bldg Fund No Fund established to build reserves for office 
building purchase $75,850.00 


Operating Reserve No Fund established for reserve for Operations 
Budget $225,000.00 


Federal Loan Yes Escrow Fund for $12 million bonds $685,375.36 
In-house 


Construction 
(formerly FEMA 


Reserve) 


No Fund established for reserve for in-house 
construction projects 


$105,158.89 
Federal 


Construction No Payment of contractor during construction 
funded by federal loans - not used at this time ($0.95) 


Capital Improvement 
Revenue No 


Fund for capital improvement projects $1,439,122.53 


State Loan #58330 Yes Fund which accrues for annual payment of 
state loan #58330 $24,842.89 


State Loan #58830 
Reserve Yes Fund required for last payment of state loan 


#58330 $24,750.00 


State Loan 58340 Yes Fund which accrues for annual payment of 
state loan #58340 $148,547.00 


State Loan 58340 
Reserve Yes Fund required for last payment of state loan 


#58340 $146,619.86 
Private Placement 


Funding  No Fund which contains balance of Private 
Placement Loan acquired in August 2008 $1,636,464.17 


        
Totals     $5,885,305.56 


 
 


Table 2.  Comparison of Reserve Approaches   


  
2010 


Budget 25% 50% 25% +10% 
2010 Operating Revenue $2,183,318       
Dept P&I Payments $1,091,314       


10% of Operating Revenue $218,332 $218,332     
15% of Operating Revenue $327,498 $327,498     


Operating Reserve (10%+15%=25%) $545,830 $545,830 
$1,091,65


9  $545,830 
Capital Reserve $250,000 $250,000 $500,000  $250,000 
Cash on Hand (Operations Fund) $200,000 $200,000 $200,000  $200,000 
Debt Payments Reserve    $273,171 $546,343  $109,269 
          


Total Policy Reserves $995,830 
$1,269,00


1 
$2,338,00


2  $1,105,098 
          
FY 2010 EOY Reserves $3,069,581      


Funds above Reserve Policy $2,073,751 
$1,800,58


0 $731,579  $1,964,483 
     







District Reserve Policy  4  
October 1, 2009 


 
 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RUSSIAN RIVER WATER SHORTAGE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report from staff discussing the Russian River water 
shortage. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Because of the water shortage situation in the Russian River, staff will present a monthly update 
on associated activities.  Below are summaries of related activities and information from this 
past month:  
 
Flows at Hacienda.  The Board Order allows minimum flows to be reduced to 35 cfs in the 
lower Russian River after July 6, 2009 until October 2, 2009 if storage in Lake Mendocino was 
below 65,630 af on July 1, 2009.  At the May 28 public meeting Sonoma County Water Agency 
(SCWA) staff stated that they thought the flows could be maintained at at least 50 cfs in the 
lower Russian River through October 2 and still maintain adequate storage in Lake Mendocino 
for fall fish releases.  The Hacienda Bridge is the flow measurement spot for the lower Russian 
River.   Figure 1 shows summer flows at Hacienda Bridge for a number of years – 1977 which is 
the worst year on record, 2007 which is the most recent year that a Temporary Urgency Change 
allowed a reduction in the minimum flow to dry year levels (85 cfs), average daily flow for this 
decade, and daily flow recorded for 2009, along with a projection done starting June 14 for flows 
this summer.  The flow projection is based on a 50 cfs flow after July 6.   
 
The line representing this year’s flow shows that the lowest flow reached this summer so far has 
been 45 cfs and this occurred on August 17.  USGS daily average values are not available on the 
on the Internet for August 12 through August 19.  Data in Figure 1 for that period are the daily 
values given in the Santa Rosa Press Democrat and represent the 7 am instantaneous value, 
which will be different from a daily average.   Flow had been steadily increasing in September to 
the 90-100 cfs range, but at the latest update (September 23) had dipped below 80 cfs and was 
very similar to 1977 levels.   Figure 1 is on the District website and updated on a weekly basis.   
 
District flow measuring effort.  The Board Order requires a 35 cfs minimum flow in the lower 
Russian River from the Dry Creek confluence to the Pacific Ocean.  The measuring point for that 
flow is at the Hacienda Bridge which is many miles (approximately 20-25 river miles?) from the 
Pacific Ocean.  Flow in an open channel rarely stays at a constant level for such a long distance, 







Russian River Water Shortage  2  
October 1, 2009 


the question is whether it is increasing or decreasing.  District staff have the capability to 
measure river flow and have been doing so this summer at the Vacation Beach Summer 
Crossing.   
 
To date District staff have measured flow six times at the Vacation Beach summer crossing.  The 
most recent flow measurement was 92 cfs compared to a reported flow of 88 cfs at Hacienda 
and probably reflects the taking down of summer dams – that action has disturbed flow in the 
lower river and has made flow measurements more difficult to compare up and down the river 
as the flow is less steady due to waves coming down the channel.  At our last measurement we 
happened across Water Agency staff measuring flow at the exact same location.  We compared 
notes and found our efforts confirmed each other’s results.  I have added the Water Agency flow 
measurements at Summer Crossing  as well as our flow measurements to Figure 1.  Taken 
together the measured flows at Summer Crossing show a consistent trend that during July and 
August; flow at Summer Crossing is approximately 10 cfs lower than Hacienda at the flow levels 
we experienced this summer.  Once the dams were being taken out that trend went away.   
 
Lower River Water Quality.  I did not have time to update the water quality figure from last 
month.  I have inspected the data and there continues to be no noticeable adverse trend in the 
measured water quality constituents.   
 
Summer Water Use.  Figure 3. April through September Monthly Sales shows summer water 
sales for 2004 (the base year), 2008, 75% of 2004 and water sales for 2009.  The figure shows 
that in August we did not meet the 25% goal for sales.  It should be noted that August data are 
for meters read in early September and represent sales from the Monte Rio and a small part of 
the Guerneville system for water used in July and August.  Production, which is for both 
systems, shows a similar percentage reduction during that period.     Depending on when one 
starts counting and recognizing the differences between the sales and production data, sales are 
down approximately 20% from 2004 and production is down approximately 10% since April 
2009. 
 
 







Russian River Water Shortage  3  
October 1, 2009 


Figure 1.  Russian River Summer Flow
Hacienda Bridge, updated September 24, 2009


0


50


100


150


200


250


300


1-M
ay


8-M
ay


15
-M


ay


22
-M


ay


29
-M


ay
5-J


un


12
-Ju


n


19
-Ju


n


26
-Ju


n
3-J


ul


10
-Ju


l


17
-Ju


l


24
-Ju


l


31
-Ju


l


7-A
ug


14
-A


ug


21
-A


ug


28
-A


ug
4-S


ep


11
-S


ep


18
-S


ep


25
-S


ep


Projected 2009 based on State Board approved TUC minimum flows and SCWA public statements


Fl
ow


 (c
fs


)


1977
2009
2007
2000-08 Avg
Proj 2009 A
Summer Crossing
WA Summer Crossing


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000


7 am values 
from Aug 12-
Aug 18


 
 


Figure 3.  April through September Monthly Sales 
Sweetwater Springs Water District


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


April May June July August September


M
on


th
ly


 W
at


er
 U


se
 (A


F)


2004
2008
2009
75%2004


 
 







Russian River Water Shortage  4  
October 1, 2009 


Figure 4.  April through September Monthly Production 
Sweetwater Springs Water District


0


20


40


60


80


100


120


April May June July August September


M
on


th
ly


 P
ro


du
ct


io
n 


(A
F)


2004
2008
75% of 2004
2009


 








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE POTENTIAL DISPOSITION OF DISTRICT 
PROPERTY  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the potential disposition of District 
property. 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  Sale of District property could bring one-time revenue to the District. 
    
DISCUSSION:  
 
Interest in one district parcel on River Lane has sparked renewed interest in the overall 
District property inventory and the potential for selling parcels that are unneeded by the 
District.  As a first step District staff have reviewed and updated historic efforts to list 
District property.  That update is contained in Exhibit A attached to this report.  This 
exhibit is based on a compilation started in the early 2000’s.  We have reviewed that 
information and updated it where appropriate.  We changed the categories some – 
category 2 has been subdivided into three – a, b, and c, to represent unneeded parcels 
that a. may have sales potential, b. probably don’t have sales potential because they 
are too small, and c. are very large wooded parcels in undeveloped areas and poorly 
accessible, probably first acquired for timber potential.   
 
In the comments column for all parcels, the comments in bold are new to this effort; 
those in regular font are holdovers from the earlier efforts.   
 
For the 2a parcels I identified, by inspection, those that are affected by the 100 year 
flood, based on FEMA flood maps.  Those maps are very small scale and tying the flood 
boundaries to actual parcel boundaries is difficult based on the information and tools I 
have available.     







Revised 09/23/09 
 


Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Real Property  
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
1  Current District facilities needed 


for ongoing operations 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
3  Further research needed  
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


1 069-060-021 17975 SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS RD 


 Sweetwater Tank Site (10,000 gal.) 
216 sf 


1 070-070-015 15797 MORNINGSIDE DR 0811 Pipeline to Highland Tank (5’ wide) 


1 070-070-023 14100 SUNSET AVE  0811 Pipeline Sunset/Woodland (5’ wide) 


1 070-070-040 14139 SUNSET AVE  0811 Highland Tank Site (2 tanks--711,600 
gal.) 
1.35 acres M/L 


1 070-070-059 OLD RIVER ROAD 0811 Condemnation 12/31/96 
(Alanizi/Sardjono - River Road to 
Morningside).  (County map not 
updated) 
1058 sf 


1 070-110-009 OAK AVE  0811 Lot; Schoeneman Tank Site (10,000 
gal.) 
4,000 sf M/L 


1 070-120-021 15304 RIVER RD 0811 El Bonita Well Site 
30,000 sf M/L  
(adjacent to APN 070-140-001) 


1 070-140-001 15304 RIVER RD 0811 El Bonita Well Site 
4 acres 


1 070-200-042 RIO NIDO RD/AZURE WAY 0811 Rio Nido Road Tank Site (Canyon 7--
20,000 gal.) 


576 sf site 


1 070-220-012 15250 CANYON 6 RD 0811 Upper Canyon 6 Tank Site (15,000 
gal.) 
4,000 sf M/L 


1 070-230-079 15471 BAY AVE  0811 Hay & Bay Tank Site (“Tully” -- 
10,000 gal.) 







Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Real Property  
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
1  Current District facilities needed 


for ongoing operations 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
3  Further research needed  
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


900 sf 


1 070-240-022 
(County owns property) 


15440 Canyon 3 Rd  Canyon 3 Pump Station -- Relocation 
of old pump station from Upper 
Canyon 3 due to Rio Nido slide 
(4,000 sf) 


1 070-262-046 14845 CANYON 4 RD 0811 50,000 gallon Tank and Booster 
1000 sf M/L 


1 070-294-020 14791EAGLE NEST LN 0811 Lot -- 3,800 sf M/L  


1 070-330-007 14610 REDWOOD LANE 0811 Redwood Tank Site 
15,861 sf (adjacent to 071-010-019) 
Korbel condemnation 12/2/96 This is 
the tank site, the adjacent parcels 
are not needed 


1 071-120-054 17666 NATOMA DR 0811 Natoma Tank Site (15,000 gal.) 
2,000 sf M/L 


1 071-130-028 WRIGHT DRIVE 0811 Tank Site: No longer in use.  
(Adjacent to APN 071-150-012 
(offline) (5,000 gal.).  
1,450 sf 


1 071-150-012 15976 WRIGHT DRIVE, GV 0003 Edgehill Booster Pump (Adjacent to 
071-130-028).  4,500 sf M/L 


1 071-260-046 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank) 
5,000 sf lot actual tank site 


1 072-021-019 19478 HIDDEN VALLEY 0811 Tank site (adjacent to 072-021-014) 
2.5 acres  In use 


1 072-160-023 PARK AVE  0811 Tank Site (20,000 gal.) 
7500 sf 


1 072-171-010 00000 McLane Ave.  64’X100’.  ACQUIRED 10/8/04, as 
part of CIP Phase III-B, for the 
Summit Ave. tank that is part of that 


Page 2 of 7 







Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Real Property  
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
1  Current District facilities needed 


for ongoing operations 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
3  Further research needed  
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


project.  (PRICE: $42,000; Seller 
Russell Harris) 


1 072-173-005 14485 MCLANE AVE  0811 Summit (Old tank site -- May be 
needed again for low pressure area) 
900 sf M/L 


1 072-173-019 17498 SUMMIT AVE  0811 Summit Tank Site (15,000 gal.) 
180 sf M/L 


1 072-215-001 SANTA ROSA 0811 Crespo Tank Site (20,000 gal.) 
750 sf M/L 


1 072-240-031 NEAR OLD MONTE RIO RD 0811 Unknown 
5,700 sf M/L  keep may be useful in 
future 


1 072-320-022 15950 Old Cazadero Road  ACQUIRED 10/2/03, as part of CIP 
Phase III-B, for the Monte Rosa tank 
that is part of that project.  (PRICE: 
$5,000.00; Seller: Eric Wallen) 


1 072-320-025 15960 OLD CAZADERO RD 0811 Monte Rosa Tank Site (20,000 gal.) 
2,000 sf M/L 


1 094-010-029 HWY 116 west of Monte Rio 0811 Unknown 
1,400 sf M/L  possible tank site in 
future 


1 094-053-003 PETALUMA AVE  0811 Lepo Tank (10,000 gal.) 
4,700 sf M/L 


1 094-080-001 20735 FOOTHILL DR 0811 Monte Rio Tank Site and Pipeline 
(226,000 gal.) 
18,000 sf M/L 


1 094-090-019 20890 HWY 116, MR 0811 Monte Rio Filter Plant 
3 acres 


1 094-160-030 RIDGECREST DR 0811 Lower Northwood Tank Site.  Tank 
removed in March, 2000.  Property no 
longer needed. 


Page 3 of 7 







Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Real Property  
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
1  Current District facilities needed 


for ongoing operations 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
3  Further research needed  
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


1,600 sf M/L  keep, may be useful in 
future 


1 094-210-001 (portion only) 18962 Upper Terrace  Upper Northwood Tank and Booster; 
Easement acquired in sale/exchange 
to Atkinson 11/15/98 
2,500 sf 


1 095-061-015 PRIVATE ROAD OFF 
MONTE VISTA TERRACE 


0811 Villa Grande Tank Site (100,000 
gal.)(Above Monte Vista Terrace) 
3.03 acres  We don’t need all of this


1 095-113-003 9200 HARRISON GULCH 0811 Lower Harrison Tank (125,000 gal.) 
16,000 sf M/L 


1 096-010-001 120 MAIN ST (MONTE RIO) 0811 Middle Schoolhouse Tank and 
Booster, and Upper Schoolhouse 
Tank 
23.76 acres 


2a 070-262-038 14829 CANYON 4 RD 0811 Lot -- 6350 sf M/L – investigate, but 
believe it is not needed;  


2a 071-010-019 14610 REDWOOD AVE  0000 Redwood Tank Site -- (130,000 gal.) 
2,800 sf, small for a sale, but can 
be combined with 030-020 below 


2a 071-025-022 NORTHERN AVENUE NEAR 
EASTERN 


0811 Parcel adjacent - under Russian 
River (Old Drake Well Field) 
20,000 sf M/L Not sure how much 
of this is out of river; Floodway 


2a 071-030-020 14610 REDWOOD LN 0811 Redwood Tank Site (Adjacent to 071-
010-019) 
12,500 sf M/L not needed 


2a 071-210-014 NEELEY RD 0811 Unknown use 
22,500 sf M/L  not needed 


2a 071-210-017 NEELEY RD 0811 Unknown use 


Page 4 of 7 







Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Real Property  
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
1  Current District facilities needed 


for ongoing operations 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
3  Further research needed  
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


5,200 sf M/L  not needed 


2a 071-220-068 17448 RIVER LN 0811 (Old Vacation Beach Well Site) 
25,000 sf M/L  Current interest; 
Floodway, full or partial? 


2a 071-260-041 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank)(2 tanks -- 140,000 
gal.) 
4,000 sf lot not needed 


2a 071-260-048 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank) 
2.5 acres  not needed 


2a 071-260-050 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank) 
5,300 sf lot  not needed 


2a 071-260-051 18379 NEELEY RD 0811 (Gonfotti Tank) 
3 acres  not needed 


2a 072-160-006 14335 WOODS AVE  0811 Near Summit 
5,000 sf lot 


2a 094-130-009 21295 HWY. 116  .5 acres, ACQUIRED in 2/21/02 from 
the Torr’s as part of the settlement of 
the Torr v. SSWD litigation  (PRICE: 
$48,000.00) Not needed, May not 
have much value 


2a 095-011-014 21944 MOSCOW  RD 0811 Unknown 
10,000 sf M/L not needed; 
Floodzone? 


2a 095-022-029 21914 MONTE VISTA TER  0811 4,500 sf M/L  not needed  


2a 095-022-030 21916 MONTE VISTA TER  0811 2,500 sf M/L  not needed 


2a 095-023-012 MONTE VISTA TER  0811 1.03 acres M/L  not needed 


2a 095-023-013 21907 MONTE VISTA TER  0942 Timber Land (Adjacent to 095-023-
012) 
4,000 sf M/L  not needed 


Page 5 of 7 







Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Real Property  
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
1  Current District facilities needed 


for ongoing operations 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
3  Further research needed  
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


2a 095-120-001 9155 HARRISON GULCH 0811 Upper Harrison Tank (to be 
abandoned)(20,000 gal.) 
2.82 acres  not needed 


2a 097-130-008 MOSCOW RD 0811 Timber Land 
20,000 sf M/L 


2b 070-070-031 14141 WOODLAND DR 0811 Pipeline Sunset/Woodland (5’ wide) 


2b 070-294-008 14685 EAGLE NEST LN 0811 2,100 sf M/L   


2b 071-150-011 15877 DRAKE RD 0003 Near Birkhoffer; Unknown use 
700 sf M/L  not needed 


2b 071-180-009 NEELEY RD 0811 Unknown use 
2,250 sf  not needed 


2b 071-191-013 BETWEEN GUERNEWOOD 
ROAD AND THE RUSSIAN 
RIVER 


0811 Old Well Field off Guernewood 
22,500 sf M/L  Lot size is only 
2,500; not much value as in flood 
plain with no direct access 


2b 072-014-014 Way out on Old Caz 0811 Small lot (Summerland Tract)  not 
needed 


2b 072-014-042 ditto 0811 Small lot (Summerland Tract)  not 
needed 


2b 072-060-007 HIDDEN VALLEY RD 0811 (Old tank site -- no longer needed) 
2,600 sf M/L 


2b 072-216-008 UPPER TERRACE/SANTA 
ROSA AVE 


0811 2,100 sf M/L   


2b 096-180-036 LAUREL DELL AVE  0811 Russian River Meadows - abandoned 
well site 
600 sf M/L  get rid of valving, etc. 


2c 069-060-004 NORTH OF GUERNEVILLE 
16505 Sweetwater Springs 
Rd 


 Timber Land (Not in District) 
240 acres 


Page 6 of 7 







Page 7 of 7 


Exhibit A.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Real Property  
Cat. APN Situs County 


Use 
Code 


Comments 


Categories: 
1  Current District facilities needed 


for ongoing operations 
2a  Unneeded for District 


purposes, resale value 
2b Unneeded for District purposes, 


limited value 
2c Unneeded for District purposes, 


large parcel 
3  Further research needed  
 


 County Use Codes: 
0811  Utility Water Company 
0000  Vacant residential lot/undeveloped 
0003  Vacant lot/totally unusable (incurable) 
0557  Timber Preserve Zone (List B) 
0558  Timber Preserve Zone (List C) 
0850  Right of way 
0942  Miscellaneous District 


2c 069-060-041 


 


NEAR SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS ROAD (NORTH 
OF GUERNEVILLE) 


0811 TPZ 
84 acres  need radio service but 
not land; income from antenna 
contracts 


2c 070-350-003 Northeast of Rio Nido  TPZ 
40 acres  Berry easement parcel 


2c 070-350-008 Northeast of Rio Nido2222  TPZ 
40 acres  Off Canyon 1 


2c 072-021-008 WEST OF OLD CAZADERO 
RD 


0558 42.4 acres in TPZ 


2c 072-021-014 19478 HIDDEN VALLEY 0811 Timber Land 
14.2 acres (adjacent to 072-021-019) 
investigate to determine need 


2c 074-200-002 South of Monte Rio, west of 
Bohemian Hwy 


0558 76.11 acres TPZ 
(Adjacent to 074-200-004) 


2c 074-200-004 Adjacent to 074-200-002  TPZ 
16 acres 


2c 097-130-010 MOSCOW RD 0557 Timber Land 
236.06 acres 


2c 097-130-011 MOSCOW RD 0557 Timber Land 
56 acres 


2c 105-240-007 CAZADERO  37.7 acres, no timber rights (Not in 
District)  We don’t know much 
about this.   


3 070-070-035 15797 OLD RIVER RD 0811 Parcel -- Old River Road to Near 
Morningside; Includes pipeland to 
Highland Tank 
28,000 sf M/L – may only need 
easement for pipeline 


 





		Item V-E - Review of District Property

		Item V-E.1 Exhibit A. SSWD Real Property List Rev9-23-09






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F 
 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: October 1, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE WILDFIRES AND DISTRICT COMMUNICATIONS
  
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the potential of wildfires disrupting 
District radio communications. 


 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  No direct impacts. 
    
DISCUSSION:  
 
Board members have asked about the vulnerability of District communications to 
wildfire, with particular interest in the Mount Jackson radio antennas from which District 
radio service is based.  Staff have inquired as to the vulnerability of the Mount Jackson 
site and have found that it is in an area which has the vegetation managed to reduce 
fire danger and is also in a high protection area – there are other antennas near the 
District radio antenna and those antennas are also important for disaster response, as 
well as normal communications.  The Mount Jackson antenna area would be well 
protected in any wildfire situation.   
 
The District also has cell phone coverage in most of the District, but cell phone systems 
are notoriously unreliable during emergencies – the system can be overloaded by too 
much phone traffic and cell phone towers are also suspect to wildfire damage.   
 
In a wildfire anything can happen, of course, but the District’s radio system appears to 
be reasonably protected.  








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: October 1, 2009  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD 
water meets all known State and Federal water quality standards.  


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in July were 30,320 units 
(69.6 AF) and production was 91.9 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales 
are lower and production is approximately the same (87.0 and 100, 
respectively).   The attached Figure 1 shows the 12 month moving 
averages since 2001. 
 
3.  Leaks:  The District spends much staff time addressing leaks and we 


have an extensive capital program to replace water mains.  In July we 
had 30 total leaks and spent 96 man-hours on them.   That’s about 
the same as last month but less than both in August one year ago – 
less than half the man hours spent a year ago.    Figure 2 shows leak 
history and man-hours spent dealing with leaks since 2001.     


 
4. Capital Improvement Projects:  KAT Construction is nearly 


completed with Project 2, which is main replacement in the Monte Rio 
Terraces.  The only major work left is road paving which is expected 
to start on September 28.   This project has been mostly completed 
for the past month with only the details on paving, a new procedure 
for the District and the various County departments, needing to be 
worked out. 


 
District staff are currently completing an in-house project on Duncan 
Trail in the Monte Rio system.  This entails replacing approximately 
1100 feet of ¾ inch pipe with 1.5 inch pipe and appurtances (seven 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
October 1, 2009 


services).  Completion of this project will provide better water quality 
and pressure to the affected customers and reduce the amount of 
flushing required to maintain a chlorine residual. 
 


5. Rainfall.  We had a little rain in September but the rainfall total for 
the year was well below average.  Next month we’ll be starting a new 
chart.  Figure 3 shows the cumulative rainfall for this water year 
compared to the average cumulative rainfall.    


 
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Average
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


1,400


May-
01


Nov-
01


May-
02


Nov-
02


May-
03


Nov-
03


May-
04


Nov-
04


May-
05


Nov-
05


May-
06


Nov-
06


May-
07


Nov-
07


May-
08


Nov-
08


May-
09


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


40.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
October 1, 2009 


 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Total Pipeline Breaks 
and Hours Spent in Repair, Moving Annual Average


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


450


500


Dec
-00


Apr-
01


Aug
-01


Dec
-01


Apr-
02


Aug
-02


Dec
-02


Apr-
03


Aug
-03


Dec
-03


Apr-
04


Aug
-04


Dec
-04


Apr-
05


Aug
-05


Dec
-05


Apr-
06


Aug
-06


Dec
-06


Apr-
07


Aug
-07


Dec
-07


Apr-
08


Aug
-08


Dec
-08


Apr-
09


Aug
-09


B
re


ak
s


-


350


700


1,050


1,400


1,750


2,100


2,450


2,800


3,150


3,500


H
ou


rs


Total Breaks
Total Hours
Linear (Total Hours)
Linear (Total Breaks)


 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ary


Feb
rua


ry
Marc


h
Apri


l
May


Ju
ne Ju


ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
tem


be
r


Pr
ec


ip
ita


tio
n


 (i
n)


GV 2009
Guerneville Avg
2009 Avg Proj


 







Jun-09 Jul-09 Aug-09 Sep-09 Oct-09 Nov-09 Dec-09 Jan-10 Feb-10 Mar-10 Apr-10 May-10 Jun-10 Jul-10 Aug-10 Sep-10 Oct-10 Nov-10 Dec-10 2011 2012
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease Completed
2009 Water Rates Revision Completed
2009 Water Rates Changes


•        Board Direction on Rate Changes
•        Prop 218 Mailing
•        Public Hearing on Proposed Rates
•        Adopt Rates with Budget


2009-10 Budget preparation Completed
2010-11 Budget preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program Board 
Discussion 


December-09


•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews Draft 
Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April-09


•        Approve Budget May-09
Capital Projects


•        CIP IV-A, Project 1 Completion Completed, 
June 09


•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Construction Start May-09
•        CIP IV-A, Project 2 Completion October-09
•        Phase IV-B Design January-08
•        Presentation of CIP Phase IV-B for Board 
Discussion/Action


February-08


•        RRROC for CIP IV-B July-09
•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Starts


April-10


•        CIP Phase IV-B, Project 1 Construction 
Completed


October-10


Water Rights Completed, 
License June 


Contract Negotiations 
•        Start Negotiations Preparation December-08
•        Negotiations Start April-10
•        End of Contract June-10


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-11


Policies and Procedures
•        Capacity Charge Policy
•        Budget Reserve Policy
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and Objectives July-09


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 





		Meeting Date: October 1, 2009 



